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EIGHTEENTH CENTURY SLAG CONSTRUCTION
BLOCKS IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE - A SURVEY

Nigel Spry

From 1996, members of the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology, the
Gloucester and District Archaeological Research Group, the Forest of Dean Local History
Society and the Bristol and Gloucestershire Archaeological Society, together with other
fieldworkers, have undertaken a systematic survey of the locations and use of 18th century
Sag Blocks in areas of the present county of Gloucestershire where they occur. This article
explains the background to the subject, outlines the methodology of the survey and provides a
summary of the results.

Introduction

Distinctive black slag construction blocks can be seen in buildings and walls in many villages
and towns bordering the Severn and Wye in Gloucestershire, and less frequently in the
hinterland parishes further from the rivers (Figure 1). Mrs Joan Day, the author of the
standard work Bristol Brass: The History of the Industry (1), at the start of the survey wrote:

The Wye with its copper smelting works of Upper and Lower Redbrook, and the Avon
with its several Bristol works provide the most likely origins for these blocks. It has
long been thought that they may have been used as ballast for coastal and inland water
transport. Possibly some came from the larger industry developing rather later at
Swansea, although blocks from this source do not appear to conform so closely to the
more regular sizes and patterns from Redbrook and Bristol.

The blocks were cast from molten material removed as waste from the melting
processes of copper smelting. The sulphide ore from Cornwall used during the
eighteenth century rarely contained more than 10% copper, requiring the remaining
90% to be eliminated as gases, or as slag during the multiple melting processes. This
resulted in large amounts of waste that caused difficulty with disposal. The Bristol
companies caused navigation problems by discarding it in the Avon. When forced to
discontinue this practice they found the casting of slag blocks to be a convenient
method of dispersing it as a useful building material.

This material has been mistakenly described in the past by various writers as
consisting of zinc smelting waste, of lead slag, or of glass slag. Anaysis of the
metallic content of a range of samples from different ores and also from different
phases in the smelting processes would be very variable. Analysis carried out on one
slag sample from Warmley, Bristol, showed it mainly consisted of the following:
silicates - 65.71%; iron oxide - 24.11%; copper oxide - 0.97% and zinc oxide - 0.80%,
with other metallic oxides. Other examples from elsewhere have contained between
2% and 4% copper.(2)

An earlier researcher, Miss Gwladys Davies, had samples of slag blocks analysed at (a) Bath
University of Technology and at (b) Pilkington Brothers. The results showed respectively: (a)
silicates - 57.5%; iron oxide - 16.2%, plus other constituents, and (b) silicates - 44.7%; iron
oxide - 44.9%; aluminium oxide - 4%; calcium oxide - 3.1%; zinc oxide - 1%; copper oxide -
0.9%; with other metallic oxides. She believed the blocks ‘were indisputably iron slag’.(3)
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Obvioudly thisis a conflicting view, but it should be noted that the main ore used in smelting
copper in the 18th century was copper pyrites containing a large percentage of iron which
needed to be eliminated into slag during the smelting process. More recently Cyril Hart
reported that analysis of a slag block sample from Redbrook gave: silicates - ¢ 70%; ferrous
oxide - 17.7%; calcium oxide - 6%; tin - 3.25; lead - 0.9%; zinc - 0.9% and copper - 0.5%.(4)
A recent density measurement of a sample of slag from Newnham-on-Severn yielded a figure
of 2800 kg m™ - that is a specific gravity of 2.8.(5)

We can be grateful to the late-18th century writer William Marshall for a clear description of
the local use of copper slag as a building material. From his Rural Economy of Glocestershire
(sic):

SLAG (copper dross) 5 or 6s aton, on the Kays (sic). This, | understand, is the scoria thrown
off by copper, in the process of smelting. Until of late years, it was cast away as useless, or
was used as a material of roads only. Now it is thrown, while hot, into moulds, of different
figures and dimensions, and thus becomes an admirable building materia. It is proof against
all seasons, in every situation; consequently, becomes an excellent material for foundations;
and still more valuable for copings of fence walls; for which use it is sometimes cast of a
semi-elliptical form. It isaso used as quoins, in brick buildings; in which case, the blocks are
run about nine inches square, and eighteen inches long. It is of a dark copper colour and has
the appearance of arich metal; but flies under the hammer asflint.(6)

The alternative use of dag, as a road material, was encountered during archaeological
excavation of the Northgate Turnpike road at Wotton, Gloucester in 1968. As subsequently
reported in the 1971 GS A Journal (7), chemical analysis of 5 slag samples revealed ferrous
contents ranging from 40-50%, with only one having a copper content - of 5%. The excavator
(the present writer), following Miss Davies, concluded high ferrous content denoted iron slag;
with hindsight, aview that was wrong.(8) The minutes of the Northgate Turnpike Trust show
that slag was used on their road from 1768 until at least 1782. At the latter date a source is
guoted in the minutes: ‘the Copper Company at Bristol’ and aso the then current price: * 3s.6d
per ton’.(9) About this time Samuel Rudder in his New History of Gloucestershire records, at
Newland, another potential source of slag: ‘There is an iron furnace in this parish and two
copper works at a place called Red-Brook, but they have their copper ore from Cornwall and
other parts'.(10)

Copper Smelting Sites

Redbr ook

The history of copper smelting at Redbrook was studied by Rhys Jenkins and published in the
1942 BGAS Transactions as ‘ The Copper Works at Redbrook and at Bristol’.(11) Both Joan
Day (12) and Cyril Hart, in his The Industrial History of Dean (13), have published further
research; the latter providing a useful location plan of the Upper and Lower Redbrook
copperworks sites.(14) Stephen Hughes in Copperopolis, a magor study of Swansea's
industrial history and landscape, also reviews early developments at Redbrook - as well as at
Bristol.(15) At Upper Redbrook (SO 536 102) at the north-west of the parish, copper was
being smelted by at least 1690 using Cornish ore. However, evidence in the Swedish Record
Office suggests that at the outset a short-lived local source of ore had been used (16),
although the accuracy of this seems doubtful. In 1691 John Coster took a sixty-year lease of a
0.4ha site beside the Newland road just east of the Wye ‘... now converted into a copper
works with appurtenances... in Upper Redbrook which are and for several years have been in
the occupation of John Coster ...” (17). The site, which straddles the county border with
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Monmouthshire (Gwent), was later extended up the hill road for some 400m. John Coster was
the associate of Sir Clement Clerke when the latter, in 1688 at Bristol, pioneered the revival
of copper smelting in England.(18) After John's death in 1718, his son Thomas took
control.(19) By 1725 there were 26 furnaces in operation (20), and at this period Upper
Redbrook was the largest producer of copper in England. Copper from sites such as this was
used granulated, together with zinc smelted from Mendip caamine ore, in the making of brass
at Bristol. Amongst other uses, brass in wire form was employed in making pins, in particular
at Gloucester. Smelting was carried on at Upper Redbrook into the 1730s when the Bristol
Brass Company having taken on the lease in 1734 systematically destroyed the copperworks —
either seeing them as a threat to the profitability of their smelting at Bristol (21), or more
likely because they were outdated.(22) (The convention adopted by Rhys Jenkins and Joan
Day of using the name Bristol Brass Company for the main company smelting copper in
Bristol in the 18th century is followed here). Although the lease was subsequently reassigned
itisunlikely that any further smelting took place.(23)

From 1692 the English Copper Company’s Lower Redbrook copperworks (SO 537 097),
400m to the south beside the Wye and extending eastward up the Valley Brook, was the local
rival of the Coster Company’s site (24); but in the early decades it seems never to have been
as successful. In 1716 it came under the control of Thomas Chambers who for many years
had been a party to the English Copper Company’s operations.(25) In 1725 there were 16
furnacesin use at Lower Redbrook.(26) Thomas Chambers died in 1726. Smelting continued
and in the years 1733-37 the 3738 tonnes of Cornish copper ore purchased by the English
Copper Company equalled 40% of the total purchased by the two companies smelting at
Bristol in the same period.(27) Whether the Lower Redbrook copperworks remained viable
is uncertain.(28) The site was leased in 1771 for making tinplate (29); a use that would
continue for the next century and a half.(30) Rudder seemsto have been writing history when
he noted the existence of two copperworks at Redbrook in 1779.(31)

Bristol

Commercial copper smelting in Bristol was started by Abraham Elton and Gabriel Wayne in
about 1696 at Conham (ST 629 719) beside the Avon 4km east of the centre of the city.(32)
Later known as Elton and Co, in the mid 1730s its ore use was a fifth of that of the Bristol
Brass Company nearby.(33) Sometime after 1744 the Conham works came under the control
of the rival company and in about 1750 the site was upgraded by the rebuilding of its smelting
furnaces.(34) When Reinhold Angerstein from Sweden visited here in 1754 there were
seventeen furnaces employed at the new works.(35) Smelting continued here into the
1780s.(36)

The Bristol Brass Company’s copperworks was established by 1710 at Crew’s Hole (ST 627
729) by the Avon 1km west of Conham.(37) Twenty-four furnaces were in use by 1724
producing about 150 tonnes of copper per year.(38) The minutes of Bristol’s Common
Council for 18th August 1749 record that the Bristol Brass Company’s practice of depositing
‘cinders’ on the banks of the Avon was *a very great nuisance and likely to choak up the said
river if not removed’. Joan Day has suggested that the problem of the disposal of slag may
have contributed to the decision to cast it into regular blocks for use as a construction
material.(39) Slag appears to have been tapped directly into moulds (40), aternatively it may
have been re-smelted to cast it, as would have been the case with recycling of ‘old’ sag.
Reinhold Angerstein saw forty-nine furnaces in 1754.(41) Around 1780 another company
leased the site from the Bristol Brass Company and some smelting continued to 1796 or
later.(42)
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William Campion and Company began operations at Warmley (ST 670 728), 8km east of
Bristol in 1748. William Campion evolved the technique of smelting copper, smelting
calamine ore to produce zinc, producing brass and manufacturing wares all on the same
site.(43) Reinhold Angerstein noted that there were 15 copper furnaces at Warmley . He was
particularly struck by the ‘fire engine’ (a Newcomen beam-engine installed in 1749) that was
used to return tail-water to the works' supply pond (44). A drawing by Reinhold Angerstein at
the time (Figure 2) (45) shows clearly that three buildings on the site, including the engine
house, were based on large regularly coursed blocks. The company expanded its smelting
operation to nearby Kingswood (ST 652 741) in 1761 (46), but William Campion had been
too ambitious. Financially overstretched, in March 1769 he was forced to offer for sale his
works at Warmley, described as ‘the most complete in the Kingdom’ and his smelting
furnaces at Kingswood.(47) Warmley was taken over by the Bristol Brass Company which
continued production. By 1781 the latter had moved all production to Warmley to take
advantage of closer coal supplies. 1787 saw the winding up of the Bristol Brass Company and
the establishment of a new one under similar ownership However, this reorganisation
heralded the demise of copper smelting a Warmley and the transfer of operations to South
Wales.(48)

Swvansea

From 1717 when the first of a series of six 18th copper smelting sites was established beside
the Tawe, Swansea gradually became the centre of British copper production. By the second
half of the century its output rivalled that of Bristol, primarily because of the availability of
cheap coal and easy sea access for imported Cornish copper ore (49), but additionally because
of the technological advances Swansea smelting interests had made.(50)  Bristol
entrepreneurs were amongst those who took advantage of the favourable economic situation
in South Wales by establishing or transferring production.(51) Unlike at Bristol, copper
smelting and its allied industries flourished at the end of the 18th century, and they would
continue at Swansea into the 20™.(52)

The Survey

The origina ambitious intention was to record the slag blocks in al ‘pre-1974
Gloucestershire parishes beside the Severn and Wye and in hinterland parishes one or two
beyond the riverside ones, depending on the topography — these being areas where blocks are
known to occur. Unfortunately it was not possible to find people to do the survey in South
Gloucestershire, so ultimately only the area of the present-day county has been investigated
(Figure 3). Parishes were assigned to fieldworkers on the basis of familiarity and accessibility.
Recording west of the Severn was undertaken by the Forest of Dean Local History Society
and initially reported (53) and then published by them.(54) Particularly in the north of this
area, work was either shared with or done by the Gloucester and District Archaeological
Research Group, whose members also undertook recording in Vale parishes. With the
exception of parts of Cinderford, Oxenhall, Newent, Cheltenham and Rodborough, all
peripheral to the main slag block distribution, the area shown in Figure 3 has been fully
investigated, but in some cases without success. For practical reasons the whole of Upper
Redbrook was treated as though in Newland, Gloucestershire

Survey recording was on standardised record cards to which photographs could be attached.
In cases where there were identification problems follow-up visits were made by one of the
co-ordinators, including the writer. Data from the record cards, from documentary sources,
information from correspondents and the results of further observation have been entered into
a computer database. The program used to enter, store and print the results of the survey is
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Lotus Approach, however, the database is accessible via similar programs. Figure 4 shows a
typical ‘entry form’ computer database record. As of August 2004 there are 184 recordsin the
database.

Each database record consists of a series of fields, some of which may need explanation :-
« Parish: Civil parish or other administrative area.

. Location: Linked address fields identifying the building or structure in which slag blocks
are used. A location should not be confused with a site where there could be a number of
locations. (‘Site’ does not feature as a separate field, however, it mostly equates to
location; if it does not, it forms the latter parts of the location address).

. Listed: A site or individual location that appears on the government’s official list of
properties of architectural or historical importance.

. Key Site: A siteor individual location that, because of its state of preservation or because
of the nature of the blocks used, is an important exemplifier

. Use The way in which slag blocks, often of different types and sizes, are used at a
location.

« Type: Form (plus size if necessary) of blocks.

. Length, Width and Height: Block dimensions. The recorded height of a rectangular block
is from its base (smooth resulting from the bottom of the casting mould) to its top (rough,
uneven and less dense exposed surface after casting); when regularly coursed in
construction the top isinvariably laid inwards so that the smooth base is shown.

. Sample Possible: Whether or not a small slag sample can be taken with agreement for
analysis, or has been taken.

Survey Results

Distribution and Transportation

Figure 5 shows in tabular form the basic data for each group of surviving slag blocks - by
parish, national grid reference, location and a simple classification of types and their use. In
each case the data has been taken directly from the relevant database record. A composite
distribution map of al types of blocks, stemming from this figure appears as Figure 6. The
use of N against the e symbol denotes the number of locations in a sub-parish area where slag
blocks were found, irrespective of whether a location has just one loose block or large-scale
use of many block types.

It is clear from the map that the Severn was the artery by which slag blocks were transported
to the towns and villages along it. With the exception of the blocks at Redbrook in Newland
parish, a copper smelting site, generally all survivals were found within 6km of the Severn.
Except at Redbrook none were beside the Wye. Apart from at Redbrook, at three further
locations in the Forest of Dean and a casua reuse at Rodborough, blocks were only
encountered in lower lying areas well below the 125m contour arbitrarily shown on the map.
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Concentrations around and spreading from Severnside quays and ferry landings highlight the
role of these in the handling of blocks. Nowhere is this more apparent than at Newnham-on-
Severn (22 locations) or at Berkeley / Ham and Stone (14) - with importation to these latter
parishes probably through Berkeley Fill; similarly at Frampton-on-Severn (18), Minsterworth
(9) and further upstream at Maisemore (7) and Ashleworth.(4) The Arlingham blocks, if not
landed directly, must have been ferried over from Newnham-on-Severn, as perhaps could
those at Elmore, from Minsterworth.

In addition the map shows the routes of early canals and the Warwickshire Avon. The blocks
used at Tewkesbury were likely to have been unloaded at one or other of the town’s Avon
quays. The Coombe Hill canal towards Cheltenham was probably completed too late, in 1797,
to carry blocks to Leigh. The instances of casual reuse and abandonment of blocks at
Oxenhall are directly associated with the Herefordshire and Gloucestershire Canal, which
reached there around 1796, but again it is doubtful if by this date blocks were still being cast;
possibly the canal merely served to transport them later at a time of reuse. However, it does
seem reasonable that the Stroudwater Canal, opened in 1779, was used for the carriage of
many of the blocks that exist in Eastington, although against this is the fact that direct and
level roads linked this parish westwards to Frampton-on-Severn, to Fretherne-with-Saul and
to Arlingham, al of which had their own river access.

Types and Use

Typical rectangular blocks were the ones encountered most frequently, at 90% of locations.
With only minor variations their widths are 225mm, showing an intention to achieve around a
9 inch vertical dimension for blocks used in coursed construction. Their lengths are 440mm
plus or minus usualy no more than 10mm and their heights centre around 180mm. The final
height of a block is dependent on the amount of slag poured into the mould. By design or
fortune there are aso peaks in height distribution at 160mm and 200mm. These average
dimensions are all dlightly less than the Bristol ones published by Joan Day (55): 9 %2 inch
(241mm), 18 ¥z inch (470mm) and 8 inch (203mm). There is a suggestion that Redbrook
blocks have a smaller average width than those found elsewhere. Rectangular blocks are
mostly employed as foundation and lower building courses in construction, as well as some
for wall copings - used rough top uppermost. However, they also appear as quoins, string
courses and decoratively, as at Cornerhouse Farm, Corse (Figure 7). Lengths of slag block
boundary walls have been noted, and similarly whole building walls including a chimneystack
as a Dean Forest Farm, Newnham-on-Severn. One of the most interesting uses for these
blocks is in the construction of cellars, for which the waterproof property of slag is well
suited. Three examples are known, including at Pump Court, Minsterworth where they are
whitewashed; no doubt more such cellars exist. It is likely that undetected slag construction
blocks form the aboveground internal walls of many properties in the area where these blocks
are used.

Figure 8 shows the distribution of other block types. Triangular ones are used as wall copings
(Figure 9) - one exception to this being a decorative insert at Corner House Farm, Corse.
Triangular blocks seem mainly to have been cast vertically, thereby giving a rough top (wide
end). Their height is variable from block to block, averaging about 355mm. Similarly,
consequently, their width (at the wide end) can vary, within a 100mm range centred on about
375mm. As well as being found at the site of Lower Redbrook copperworks, examples of
these blocks were noted on both sides of the Severn, though much more frequently on the east
side, particularly around Berkeley. To the south of Berkeley, at Ham and Stone, a particularly
interesting triangular block with a moulding mark was found amongst infill in front of a
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trackway gate west of Whitecliffe Park (Figure 10). Reversed R and S are clearly shown in
relief, these letters originally having been depressed in a vertically tapering mould set
unspaced side-by-side (co-joined) with a standard triangular one prior to casting. It seems
likely that the block was used, or intended, as a property or field boundary (mere) stone. This
is the only known local example of a mould mark, but Stephen Hughes quoted Roman
numerals on rectangular blocks used as wall copings at one site in South Wales.(56) Double-
length triangular blocks, from co-joined regular moulds were recorded at Redbrook including
on the Lower Redbrook copperworks site, but nowhere else.

Half round wall coping blocks (Figure 11) are less common, being found at eleven locations,
al to the west of the Severn, including at the Lower Redbrook copperworks and nearby
Highbury Farm, Newland where they formed caps on a crenellated facade. Their average
dimensions are 220mm high, 435mm wide and 205mm long. Such blocks were also used to
make a column at Hill House, Newnham-on-Severn. Larger half round blocks were employed
to construct the columns supporting the first floor of the warehouse at Newnham quay. These
blocks are 305mm high (though used flat), 615mm wide and 200mm long. Large half-round
blocks, though apparently shallower, also topped part of the Highbury Farm facade.

Highbury Farm was the only location to yield angle-ended quoins suitable, as used there, for
bay windows (Figure 12). The blocks were 230mm wide, 230mm high and 470mm long to
the line of change beyond which the block face continued diagonally for 255mm .

At three locations examples of channel blocks were found. They were around 440mm long,
200mm or 230mm wide and of differing heights between 152mm and 225mm They had either
a 50mm or a 75mm radius channel running along the cast base (Figure 13). They would have
been used rough top downwards; alternatively it may have been possible to use such blocks,
one above another with channels facing each other, in land drainage. None of these blocks
were in-situ. They did not occur at Redbrook but nor have they been noted as products of
Bristol (or Swansea).

Paving dlabs typically 610mm sguare and 140mm high were found on the Lower Redbrook
copperworks site together with a longer narrower version 750mm by 300mm. The latter are
often co-joined to give a square cross-section rectangular block. Stephen Hughes mentions
the use of paving dlabs but there is no reason to suppose they came from this site.(57)
Another Lower Redbrook copperworks product, or at least encountered only there, was a
rectangular block with a 30mm deep sharp-edged depression running across its base at right
angles to the long side (Figure 14). Upturned, these blocks would have been suitable as
roadside or paving gutters. At the site some blocks seem to be variants of others, accidentally
or otherwise, as a result of co-joined moulds. It was noted that the surfaces of the blocks
being recovered for recycling from here often seemed duller and more uneven than those
normally encountered.

Narrower than average rectangular blocks, 180mm wide, 430mm long and 180mm high, were
used, whole and part, in the former Bush public house at Upper Redbrook and thinner still,
usually fragmented, blocks or slabs formed the bank retaining wall behind. The reduced width
blocks seem to have been produced earlier than typical ones as the latter appear in the upper
extended / rebuilt part of the building. Similarly, thin ones appear earlier than rectangular
ones since the retaining wall was buttressed in places using the rectangular type.
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Sag Block Sources.

Perhaps the most important question that remains unanswered is. in a particular area, where
did the various slag blocks found during the survey actually come from? It is unlikely that the
blocks at Redbrook would have been produced elsewhere, and this applies to those in
Newland in general. The Upper Redbrook site ceased copper smelting in the early 1730, but
whether smelting continued beyond the middle of the 18th century at Lower Redbrook is
problematic. Hart reported that at the latter site there was, until demolished in 1943, a house
built partly of copper slag blocks with the date 1771 over the doorway.(58) Remembering
Rudder’s 1779 observation about copperworks at Redbrook, is it possible that re-smelting of
‘old’ copper dag for blocks, rather than smelting of ore for copper, was taking place -
possibly at both upper and lower sites?

The more common types of block produced at Lower Redbrook - rectangular, triangular and
half round - are al found in the Severnside parishes and so they could be from the site, but it
is more likely that the majority came from Conham, Crew’s Hole, or Warmley / Kingswood.
There are three dated Severnside uses of rectangular blocks. at Barn House, Newnham-on-
Severn, which deeds date to 1765 , (one of the locations with a slag block cellar); at the
Congregational Chapel, Frampton-on-Severn which was consecrated in 1776; and at
Slowwepool Barn, Arlingham which has a keystone above the entrance with 1780 on it. All
the Bristol sites seem to have been in operation between these dates - the first confirmed
Bristol use of slag blocks was at Clifton in the late 1740s.(59) Unfortunately there are no
confirmatory local examples of types particular to Bristol sites, such as the double-length
rectangular blocks found at Lower Conham Vale, Conham (60), or the characteristic type of
rectangular block with one dlightly inset quarter-round corner, from base to top, noted in
gateposts at Kingswood (61) and used at Warmley sometime between 1748 and 1769 as
rounded quoins for protecting corners. Stephen Hughes noted that Warmley / Kingswood
quarter-round ended blocks were not seen at Swansea.(62) But nor are Swansea products
such as verticaly faceted sharply triangular coping blocks (63) or shaped brick size
construction blocks (64) found in Gloucestershire.

Further Work

From its start the Gloucestershire Slag Block Survey was intended as a fieldwork exercise.
Because of this no attempt has been made to research the history of the many properties that
have yielded blocks, nor has origina documentary information been sought on the supply or
transportation of the blocks. Results of this survey usefully could be the starting point for
further work on these aspects.

There is no doubt that despite the enthusiasm of all who contributed to the survey, inevitably
slag block survivals will have been missed. Any new or additional information received
during the six months following publication of this article will be added to the computer
database. It is intended that after that the original record cards, the computer database, slag
samples aready taken and any further documentation will be offered to Gloucestershire
County Councils Archaeology Service for archiving. Copies of the computer database will be
made available to the Gloucestershire Record Office and to the appropriate conservation,
heritage or archaeology officers of the four districts covered by the survey.
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I 61. Personal observation
55. Ref. 1, 220 62. Ref. 5. 52
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57. Ref 15 54 64, Rel 15 34
38, Ref 4 108

Figure 1, Rectangular copper slag blocks used as copings on a wall

beside Organ's Alley, Gloucester
F "
Figure 2. Reinhold

Angerstein's 1754 drawing
of part of the copperworks
at Warmley, showing the
use of slag blocks

[after Rhvs Jenkins,
Trans BGAS 63,

with acknowledgement
to the Bristol and
Gloucestershire
Archaeological Society |

45



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

" O
-!

Teynleg :
-
14

SURVEY OF 18th CENTURY SLAG BLOCKS : oL
IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE s - ""';)

-

A Asheimireh
f - \.‘l
+
& Eorthanpton Valton Cardtfs
" r’chlI:l'.]r_l' Tavkaalairy
-~ —
- [ Stoke Orchamid
- | ""-lr‘I ! Corss Tirley
— 5
[ 2t w \ Staantan 2 Hismtona
| S Ll e, Hardwicka
M
Anhleworih Laign
1
g Nerton Baddingren
i,
Q—g L] Sandhurst 0 oo Bfavearton Lo
ésf } Rudford tharls s
Mal slEtgnham »
& N o Tibberton JAEATE N Pudgeorin AR
= \ Langlevans - "
-
Lergford - T, I
Thuaredpbrwn \"’.n...J
Hespated

Gloucsater’

Lonigney

Mardwloka . o)t .e
Whmdden F
i Horaton Yalence >
Arlingha= j:'_
Fretharns Hareafiold
with A

Faul Wi tedasier

Newlond WHEL Dwan

Eaant Briavels

Ay L
Husniatinld r\'“ﬂ“"

AlvEngeon

YWaolaston

DNLY PAATTALLY SURVEYEDR

Rivar Wye

COUNTY BOUMDARY

Figure 3. RIVERSIDE AND HINTERLAND PARISHES NFS

46



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

Location Line 1
Comer House Farm

Fw
\Yes

Usel
|Construction

i e
| Decorative
Usa :1_
[Quoin

Raecorder
|Ann Maxwel
|

Adddress Line 1
!Cmnsnda

Figure 4

Gind Refarence
Ralittliial]_ o
ESG 803 278
Location Line 2 Location Line 3 Location Towm
I — e —— - B T
Wickridge Streel :Gnrs& iGIou::.aster
Photo Listed Ky Sit
k izt
Yes Yes |Yes
1
Type 1 Longih 1mm) Wit 3{men)  Height 1 {mm)
|Rectangular !dﬁﬂ 220 1185
I 1
Type2 Length2(mm)  Width 2 (mm)  Hoight 2 (mm)
| Triangular f 1330 1457
Type 3 Long3 ) Wisth 3imon)  Haight' ()
\Rectangular 1450 220 |185
Description and Comments

;f:‘-'lag blocks are used around the brick house - rectanguiar
|blocks as quoins, as a string coursa at mid level, as lower
imurs.ﬂs above a lias plinth and decoratively, including end on.
A trangular block is used as a decorative insert (sizes
{approx. ). Attached oulbuilding has lower slag courses

Additional Motes
Recardar Talaphans
|D145’2 TBOB26
Adoress Line2 #_.t_luili:L}m 3 Address Town
i Hasfield Gloucester

47

skl 2
GL19 4JW

Sample Fossible
|Taken

A e
(GL19 4L

Database “Entry Form® of the record for Comer House Farm, Clorse,



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

85IN0D JAMOT

8SIN0D JOMOT]
9SIN0D JAMOT]
uonp  Jejnbueioay aAlBI029(Q

uonoNJISUOD
uionp

uond

uionp
uionp

uonoNIISU0D
9SIN09 JOMO']

95IN0D MO

95IN09 JAMOT

€ asN ¢ adAL Z29sNn

(530 1) g aunbi4

Jejnbuejoay

Je|nbueioay
Jejnbueioey

Jejnbuen

Jejnbueiosy
Jejnbuejoay

JejnBuejoay

JejnBuejoay
JeinbBuejoay

JejnBueloay
JejnBuejoay

Jejnbueloay

Jeinbueloay

zadA}L

Buidod jlepn
8SIN0J JAMOT
9SJN02 JOMOT
8SIN00 JaMOT

uonp
uonoONIISU0YD
9SIN0OD JOMO"
uionp

uonp
uoloNIISU0D
uonRoNIISU0YD
85007
uoioNJISu0D
uonoONIISU0D

Buidoo |lepn
9SIN02 JOMOT
9S1N09 JAMOT]
9SIN0D JOMOT
8SIN0D JAMOT

Buidoo [lepn
9SIN0O JOMO™]

Buidoo [lemn
9SIN09 JAMOT

uooNIISUCD
9SJN0J JOMOT]

Buidoo |lepn

Buidoo jlepn

uonoONIISUCD
881n0J JOMOT

Buidoo jjlep

uion®

6uidoo [1em
uionp

uionp

uond
uonoNIISuU0D
95007

9SIN0J JAMO]
8s007

Buidoo jlepn

L9sn

Jenbueu
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbuejoay
Jejnbuejosy
Jejnbuejoay
JejnBueloay
JejnBuejoay
Jejnbueioay
Jejnbueioay
Jeinbuejoay
Jejnbuejoay

punod jieH
JejnBuejoay
JejnBuejoay
Jejnbuejoay
Je|nbueioay
Je|nbuejoay
Jejnfbuejoay
te|nbueloay

Jeinbuent
Jenbueoay

Jenbuen |
Jenbuejoay
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbuejoay

Jeinbueu |
Jeinbueay
Jejnbueioay
JejnBueoay
JejnBuejoay

|auueyD
Jejnbuejosy
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbuejoay
Jejnbueloay

Jejnbuen |
Jejnbuejoay

Jeinbuen]

Jeinbueny

L adAL

puajseN
pualsap
pusisam

ugal9) ssalD
ugale) ssa1d
Pus|ilin

HUNoyH uopadyy
wJue4 sydAed
wued spdAe|d
aue younyd
10ans abpinioIm
yled Jeaui piopapuld

abenoD MalA [ozeH
(wnasniy) Anueyo ayL
1ans Ainquoue)d

19ans Ainquoue)d
yainyo jo yinos

1818 YbiH
19818 J9)es 12
uoyBuiypoN

aue sjeuoIyd
aquiooles

I1IH AsuIn

uu) jeog JesN

uuj yeog syusoddo
asnoH uojsiig
asnoy uojsjig
wiie4 PUsuoiy Jamo

uLe- j0odammojs
wed |00dammolsS
100u1g Aepud

wie ajebsde|d
yainyd weybuipy
wied ypomyoueig

9SNOH puaiseN
aA0IBININ

safieyo) uojbuisseld
mesBir ayy 'z oN
(Asone0) fIIH

NN PuaIliN puoAaq jlBMm
uleg

pays ajued

uleg

asnoH MaN

wied asnoH JauloD
Kisijj0D uosmog Map Jo alIs
yainyo

afenoo Ajsnng

[IBAA UapJeD

21JU30) eMeYESES
8snoH [00yds PIO
0auns Anquoue) 0¢
suuy Agjenueg

\uspse afisep, o} |lem
10948 UbIH 2¥

liem ajels3

asnoH piojwiels

useg uojbuiyuoN

uue4 so|stpaig

Hem

aueT pie|jod ausoddo ‘liem
Buiping

Buipiing

llem iepunog

llem apispeoy

Jlem uue4

9SNOH aMMOIS

uleq |jlews

ujeg

Iseu yoelg

4yoJnyo jo iseg

" esnoy wied

yoanyo o ise

IIem spispeoy

€290 L06L OS
890 #8.0OS
690 £8.0S
08Y0 628L OS
§6¥0 028L OS
¥€60 €182 OS
560 LLLOS
$660 0992 OS
$650 099. OS
5262 0L/8 OS
9/Z €08 0S
0LS) 0PY9 OS
€81 69L 0S
20 LS80S
10€ /58 0S
S166 S¥89 1S
0266 5989 1S
0266 0989 1S
0266 0689 1S
5066 0789 1S
0166 6£89 1S
0066 5£89 LS
0266 5289 1S
880 2Z0LOS
€80 689 0S
G50 6.90S
€90 199 0S
152 818 0S
152 818 08
152 018 0S
152 018 0S
1601 G8LL OS
6ELL OPLL OS
6Ll €2LL OS
6vLL €2LL OS
GZLL 0LLL OS
9.0} 10LL OS
6801 960L OS
6501 $80L OS
186 9L. 1S

UoIJe20T] BIUBIBJOY PUS)

317 uoneso AsAINg yoo|g Be|s a41ysia}saonojo

uoibunsey
uojbupsey
uojbuiiseg
uojbunsey
uojbuiisey
uoibunsey
uojbuyyseg
uojbuysey
uojbunsey
1sInyIsaq
98100
piojapuld
weyainyd
Kajaoey)d
Rajeoeyd
F T TE |
LT TET: |
Kojorleg
Kojoviag
Kojoyiag
folovieg
Rooryag
Aojoyuag
aImy
UMy
aIMy
aIMy
yuomalysy
YHoMalysy
yuomajysy
yHoma|jysy
weybuipy
weybuipy
weybuipy
weybuipy
weybuipy
weybuipy
weybuipy
weybulpy
uoibuyly
ysued



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

wonp

Buidos |lepn Jenbueny uony

25007
25007
25007
9SIN0D JOMOT]

uionp

uononIISU0D
uiony

Buidoo jlepn
ulend

8SJN0D JOMOT]
¢ osn ¢ adAy zosn

(g302) g oainbig

Jejnbueioay

Jejnbuejoay

Jejnbueu |
Jejnbuejoay
leuueyD
Jejnbueioay

Jeinbueloay

JenBueloay

Jenbueiosy

sejnbuel |
Jejnbueoay

JejnBueiooy
z adA)L

Buidoo jlepn
951N09 JOMOT
9SIN0D JOMOT

Buidoo jlepn

Buidoo jlean
85IN02 JOMOT

uoHoNIsuUoD
8SIN02 JOMOT
Buidoo {lepn
Buidoo e
Buidoo jlepn
95007
buidoD Hemn
uolonsuoD
UOHONJSUOD
uononJsuo)
UoNoNISU0D
95007
uononysuo)
85007
uoioNISU0D
8SIN0J JOMO]
9SIN03 JaMoT

uoHONJISUOD

uoHONISU0Y
98JN0J JOMOT
8SIN0J JOMOT
9S1n09 JoMoT
3SIN02 Jamo

Buidoo jlepn
9SIN09 JOMOT

Buidoo jiepn
951N09 JaMO7
98IN0D JOMO}
9SIN0Y JOMOT]

Buidoo jlepn
981N0D JaMOT]
9SIN0D JaMOT

uonoNISuU0D
9SUN0D JOMOT]

198N

Jejnbueioay
1ejnbueloay
sejnbueioay
Jejnbueioay
Jejnbueioay
sejnBuejosy
Jejnbuejoay
sejnBuejosy
senfuen |
Jenbueu |
sgnbueu |
senbuen ]
senbuepay
JenbBueoay
Jejnbuepay
JejnbBueloay
JejnBueioay
Jejnbueloay
rejnbueoay
JejnBuers |
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbueloay
lejnbuelooy
lejnbueloay
Jeinbueloay
JeinBueioay
JejnBueioay
Jejnbuelosy
Je|nBueiosy
JejnBueloay
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbueloay
Jejnbueloay
Jenbueioey
Jejnbueloay
Jgnbueloey
Jenbueioay
Jeihbueloay
Je|nbueosy
padAy

abenoo poL

abenoD pol

wJe4 awoH

ule4 yodnyd

9snoH Aapaquiy

wJie4 pug s,uiepepn
s9jqe}s 9iseD Aejareg
saiqels slise) Asjeyiag
Jeoly N0

pieAyoinyy auois
abejoD nusayd

sue sieuppeig
aueT sieupoeld
199418 UleN
apojiweld JamaT
apojiuel4 Jamo
SpOjIuIEI4 J9MO0]
aue auweylalq 68

wied plaumo L

Wwiied plaijumol
uaals) uoydwesd
usale) uoydwesd
uiied pjayumot
asnoH 99§00 PIO 8YL
aue| Ued plajumo L
{ywnos) suiq syl

Sild syl

usai uoydwesd
aue| |adeyd ‘Baibuo)
aue| (adeyo ‘BaibuoD
aueq sSiuM

¥oeg aiowi(3
yoeg asow3

liem apispeo
Buipyinqino

Buipiing

1lem apispeoy

liem uapiesy

weg

300[q souBAUT

00iq 9|qe)s ulen

llem Arepunog

lem preAyoinyd

S|jem uspies)

died 3OS HUA Mmolag
Kajiy s,uebio
sleupoelg ‘efues yinog
slelipioelg ‘yonyd
abenod payorey
asnOH [N ‘prek Jeay
9snoH [|IN ‘uepieD
9snhoH HIN

abejoo aussylaid ‘eANq
1N ebpugauwol
asnoH

asnoyuued

uul fleg 'Buipingno
uyl jleg

weg

liem Auepunog

9SNOH apuNWEesSoy Jo J ‘JIBAA

Buipyngino

sjiem Aepunog

sid a9yl

Iemn

tedeyo Jeuoljebaibuo)
3eO jo UesH ‘lleM
9SNOH PIOJIBAA

25n0} SaleN JO YInos ‘JleM

9sNOH jjouyyong
obenoo apisyoinyd
Buipiing spisyueg
asnoH

698 19COS
698 19¢ 0OS
99l LI8OS
G691 5718 OS
9.2 52808
el GLL0S
986 0289 1S
G986 0289 1S
9€56 5689 1S
§¥96 5¢89 1S
08¥6 0849 1S
€6 099 1S
€81 9€80S
G81 6¢8 OS
g8l 628 OS
G680 08¥L OS
0¥0lL 09¥L OS
0v0L 09¥L OS
0¥01 09¥L OS
¥60 €.€ OS
12.0€69L OS
LL0 2SL0S
120 29L0S
180 1SL0S
180 1SL0S
110 1SL0S
08.0 G8¥L OS
S¥.L0 08YL OS
9.0 8¥.LOS
9.0 8vLOS
9.0 8vLOS
0LL0GL¥L OS
62.00LPL OS
G0 G9%L OS
§GL0 G9¥L OS
L0 oYL OS
¢l0 9vL0OS
0690 0¥¥L OS
G891 62/, 0S
0491 669L OS

uoneso0T 9dUBIAISY PUD

}SI7 uoneso-] AoAing yoo|g Be|s a11ysia)saono|n

ybia

ybia

pajsdweH
pajsdwoH

piayseH

ayoImpleH

auols pue weH
3uolg pue weH
auolg pue weH
3aU0}S pue weH
auolS pue wen
3U0IS puE WeH
191520n0|9
191590n0|9
J91S80N0}H

INeS UM aulaylal4
Ines ulim suiaylald
|NeS UM suwiaylald
INeS UIm susaylal
Ines yum auwiayleld
waAes uo uoyduield
WA Uo uojduield
UIBASS Uo uoyduwiesd
UI9A9G Uo uoyduwel4
W99 Uo uojdweld
UI9AaS uo uoidwesd
LIBASS Uo uojdweiy
WI2ASS uo uojduield
UWIBASS Uo uojdwieid
WI9Aag uo uoydwesy
WIBAS U0 uojdweld
UI2A8G uo uoydweld
UIBAag U0 uojdwei
UIBA9G uo uoydweld
UI3A8S Uo uoydwel4
WI9AaS Uuo uojduel
WIaASS uo uoydwel4
LIBASS U0 uoydield
ajowiz

asowzy

ysued

49



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

uornoNIISU0D

95007

88007

Buido [fepn

UONONJISU0D

g€ 9sn

(s30¢) gaunbiyg

1ejnBueloay
punoi jleH
(mouseu) qeis

Jepnbuen |

JejnBueyosy

g adAy

uoloNIISU0D
Buldo9 {lepm
uoHONJISUOD
85007
8s007
2s007

buidon

suomnp
uononIISu0D
Buidoo jlep
uoHoNIISU0D

uonp

9S4N0D JOMOT]

9SIN0D JaMOT

uoHINIISU0D

UOHONIISUCD
85007

zgosn

punos jjeH
punoy jjleH

aels

(x bs) JeinBuejosy
(s|qnop) seinbuen |
qeis

(eignop) senbuen |

Jenbuejoey
(uiyy) Jejnbueloey
punos jjeH

{uyy) se|nbuejooy

segjnbueloey

Jejnbuejoey

JejnBueooy

JejnBueiooy

JejnBuejooy
Jenbueoay

g odAp

uononIsuoD
uoijoniisuo)
uononysuoD
uolPNIISU0D
uononasuoD
85007

95007

85007
uononnsuod
uonoNIISU0D
uolonsisuo)
uonp
uolonIIsuo)
uononisuoD
uononisuoD
uonONIISU0D
uoonIIsueD
uoionasuoD
UoIoNISU0D
85007
UOHONJISUOD
uononisuc)
9SIn09 JamoT
8SIN09 JaMOT
954N0D JaMo]
uionp

uionp
uononisuoD
uonoNISUY
8SIN02 Jamo]
2SIN02 JaMoT
Buidos jjepn
8500
UoONIISU0D
Buidoo jiepn
Buidoo jlepn
UoIONIISU0D
Buidoo jlepn
UonONIISU0D
9S1N09 JOMOT

lL9sn

JeinBueloay
JejnBueloay
Jeinbueloay

(x bs) Jeinbueloay

Jejnbueloay
passaidag
JenBuen |

JenBuejoay

Jeinbuejosy

Jeinbuejoay

(mouseu) qejs

JeinBueloay

Jeinbueloay

Jejnbueloeay

Jejnbuelosy

Jebueipay

Jeinbuejoy

JejnBueloay

Jejnbuejosy

JeinBueioay

JeinBuejoay

JenBueipay

Jenbuepay

Jejnbuejoay

Je|nbBuejoay

Je|nbuejoay

JejnBuejoay

Jginbuelooy

se|nbuejoay

Jejnbueosy

JeinBuejoay

Jejnbuejoay

JejnBueloay

JeinBueloay

JeinBueoay

JeinBuejosy

JenBuejoay

Je|nbuepay

Jeinbuejooay

JeinBuejoay

} adAL

300igpay

jooigpay

joolgpay

Y00IqPay Jamo
Y0oIgpay Jamo
Y00IGPaY JOMoT]
Y00Iqpay Jamo]
Y00IqPaY Jamo
Yooigpay Jamo
Y00IqPay Jamo]
NOoIqpaY JamoT
00IPaY Jamo
NooIqpay JamoT
)00Iqpay JomoT
)00IgpaY JomoT]
004qQpay Jamo
)00Igpay JamoT

HIN Yomsiey

N Yomsiey

wed Ynod ee

wied Ynod ee

wled unod ea

sueT A1sjepn

wiie4 J0JOI00} JaMOT]
Wiie JOO100[ Jamo
unog dwng

uno) duwing

unoo dwing

HnoY dwing

UJBADS JBAIY JO jueg
Siejd ayL

wie4 Uno) alowasiepy
UN0D dIowasieiy
asnoH dyg ay

Wwie4 Pno) alowasiep
HNOD PIO 2Jowasie
beoy pio

peoy pio

pusumoqg

wie 4 LinqybiH ‘llem uleg
wied Ainqybiy ‘Bulpiingino
uied AunqybiH ‘9snoH uued
syIom ajeiduny ‘ylem Buluieioy
syiom ajeiduny ‘Ilem syg

(¢) sus sxiom ajerdur)

(2) sus sxiom ajejdur L

(1) aus sxiom ajerdur}
sylom arejdul) ‘flem yied
apISiiiH ‘llepn

pieAyoINyD SJNOIAES 1S
JBALL JO YuBQ ‘9SNOYAIBAA
9IS YIOM JO 1SaM ‘9SNOH
asnop Kajjep akpa ‘Bulpiing
ashoy oijgnd ysng Jeunod
sabeyoo syiom alejdunl ‘epn
Hd ysng xa ‘|lem Buluieloy
Buipling 1w

9SNoH

ainesy Jeesg

Anlid

Ais Bid piIO

wJed uojdweH

fem

asnoyuue

asnoysyeg

abeyod

asnoy JapIo apisaq [[BAA
asnoH ulep

Ny suswiusysy pIO

9snoH 1eo0|4

paus uue} ‘[lepp

yied [elswwo)

llem uspies)

uleq Buiuiofpe jjean

llem uspies

abenoo lleg

wied asnoH {dg ‘llepn
ueg

peoy Aingsexmal 01-801

0€60 68¢S OS
0€60 G8¢S OS
0€60 §8¢S OS
£.60 8¢S OS
160 8¢S OS
G.60 G.€S OS
G160 6.€5 OS
G160 GL€S OS
€160 6.¢5 OS
G660 0.€S OS
G660 0.¢5 OS
G160 0.¢S OS
060 04€5 OS
0001} 09¢es OS
20l 985 OS
20l 985 OS
0L 986 OS
69vYZ 695. OS
69¥Z 695L OS
050} 695 OS
050} §95. OS
0S50} 695. OS
vLl 88L0S
0LL §8L 08
0LL G8LOS
Ll eLLOS
CLL €LLOS
Ll eLLOS
Ll €LL0S
89l 19L0S
9S1 99.0S
6912 9vi8 OS
9912 Gv18 OS
Geie g8 OS
89LZ Lvi8 OS
G612 9818 OS
9eLZ 5018 OS
9€1Z G018 OS
8¢l 09.0S
60C 68 OS

uonedso] 3oUIIRJOY PUD

pueman
pueman
puBIMaN
puBiMaN
puemaN
pueimaN
puemaN
puemaN
puemaN
pueimaN
pueman
puBIMaN
puemanN
puemeN
pUBIMAN
puemaN
puemaN

uamaN

JuamaN

20Ud[EA UOJAION
90UB|BA UOJRION
99UajEA UCIBION

yuomiajsuliy
yuomaisuiin
yyomiasuiiy
yuomisjsuliy
yHomiasuip
yuomiaisuiy
yuomisisuiy
yuomsaisuin
yHomILISuIN
alowasiepy
ajowasiepy
alowasiepy
alowasiepy
alowasiey
alowasiepy
alowasieyy
KaubuoT
picjbuon
ysued

JSIT7 uoljes0] ASAIng Yo0|g Be|S a11ysia)sasnojo

50



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

uomo

Buidoo jlepn punol jleH  9sInoD JAMOT

Buidoo jlemn
uoHONJISU0D
8SIN0D JOMOT]
UOHONJISUOD
uonoONISu0D
85007

uoonysuc)  Jenbuelosy

9SIN0D JOMO

Jejnbueloay

Jejnbueoay

punol yjeH
JejhBueposy
Je|nbuejosy
Je|nbBueysy
(eBuey) punod JjleH
punos jjeH

Je|nbBuejosy

uononusuod  (uy)) Jejnbuelosy

g osn godAy zosn

(sjo¥) gainbiy

ZadA}

uoloNNsU0D
9SIN0D JSMO]
2SIN09 JAMOT]
8SIN09 JAMOoT
2sIN02 JaMo"
8SIN02 JAMOT
9SIN0J JaMOT
8SIN02 JOMOT
85IN0D JAMOoT
8SIN0D JAMOT]
9SIN0J JAMOT]
uonongsuod
Buidos jlepn
85007
uononAsuUoD
uoloNAsU0D
uonoONAISU0D
uoloNIISU0H
uondnIsu0D
uionp
sujony
9SIN0Y) JAMOT
uondNAsu0D
ujonpd
uonoNIIsu0D
uolonisuoD
Buidos |jepn
uonoNANSUeD
uononssuo)
uononIsue)
uonoNIIsU0D
uoflonJIsuoD
uionpd

95007

2SIN02 JaMOT
uofdNNsU0D
uolONISU0Y
uonpd
uoloNIISU0D
uoHONIISU0D

I @8N

leinbuejoey
JginBueyoey
JeinBuelosy
Jenbuejoey
Jejnbuepoy
sgjnbuejoey
JejnBueosy
JenBuejoey
JejnBuejosy
JejnBueosy
Jeinbuejoay
JenBuejoay
Je|nBuejoay
JeinBuejoey
Je|nBuejosy
JeinBuejosy
punou jieH
JepnBuejosy
Jejnbueioey
JejnBueyooy
Jejnbuejoey
Jejnbuejey
JejnBuejosy
JejnBuejoey
JeinBueoay
Jginbueoay
JejnbBuejooy
Jenbuelooy
JejnBuejosy
JejnBuejoey
Jejnbuejosy
Je|nbuejosy
Jeinbuepay
JeinBuejoay
JejnBuejosy
IejnBuejosy
JeinBueoay
sejnbueosy
Jejnbueioay
punoJ-jjeH

| adAL

1IN s.pleeg
peoy Aajsing
peoy Aaising
peoy Asjsing
aue siieky
aueT uojsebuor

lieH abetia
aue uojsy Buo

wied 1eop
abepnon uapiemey
abe}j00 oo
9OUBHUD |BuuUn}
peoy yoinyg
aueT Jajleme|un
aug] Jalemejun
aueT Jajemelun
ueT Jaleme|un
aueT Jalemelun
aue] Jalemelun

Kend weyuman
aueT] Jolemelun
aueT JoleMmelun
aue Jolemelun
sue] Jajemelun

8SNOH PIO,

\8SNOH PIO,

(9SNOH PIO,
198.}S WIBA3G
peoy yaInud 0
jeang Uybi4
10248 yYbiIH
peoy ueag
ajiseD jlamieald
192118 YbIH
%00iqpay Joddn
%00J9pay

ltem puek ajen

uleg ssjeN

afenos ayy

abeyod Asjweig

s, fojwelg

asnoH adopH

8SNOH younyo

liem Asepunog

suinH 8y ‘jlem Aiepunog
uoysBury

asnoyuue 4

ofiessed 40 Jjem 1seg

liem Buiurejas apisjeue)d
yredmo} eued

len nuag

asnoH HjIH ‘llem spispeoy
asnoH [liH ‘Buipiingino
wed 1sdi104 ueaq ‘Buipjing
wie }saiog4 ueaq ‘pieA
uled 1salo4 ueaq ‘llepa
wied jse104 ueag 'ashoH
peoy yanyd g
asnoyasem alEAA PIO
abenon uleg

ashoH uieg ‘Buipjingino
25N0H uleg

llem apispeoy

[lem piek Jeay

ffem Alepunog yuoN
183118 UbiH

Bulpjingino asnoy yoeoo
llepp

abiod4 PO ayL

S9IqeIS PIO 2yL ‘alid Yooig
S9IqBIS PIO, 0} xau abeod
lepn

liem Asepunog

wie4 jnodg

PEeOY puBMaN 'S|{EAR
uueg AanqubiH ‘liem qnig

04¥0 9¥6L OS
¥€€0 86%. OS
¢ec0 96¥.L OS
€€€0 S6¥L OS
€S0 LEYL OS
SPv0 LEPL OS
$S€0 $6€L OS
§S€0 96€L OS
1620 0L€L OS
88€0 8e€L OS
0622 S0e8 OS

b¥0 G¥8 OS
0,92 S2LL OS

LlZ 80L0S

611

69 OS

GZZl 5€69 OS
G2Zl G£69 OS
S22l 0£69 OS
Gecl 069 OS
Geel 069 OS
§cZi 0£69 OS

6Ll €690S
6Ll €69 0S
¢l 269 0S
¢l 6908
Zcl 69 OS
lcl 26908
6Ll 26908
6Ll 26908
611 26908
6lL1 26908
Lll 26908
€911 €169 OS
Ll 16908
Lil 16908

0LL1 G069 OS
6,10 1v.G OS

160
80l

€65 0S
6€5 OS

0£60 S8¢S OS
UoHEI0T 99UBIBIBY PUS)

asnoyauolg
abpuquig
abpuqug
abpuquig
abpuquuilg
abpuquig
afipuquis
abpuquulg
abpuquug
abpuquils
jsinypueg
ybnosogpoyy
reyuaxo

leyusxo

UJOASS UO WEBYUMIN
UJBARG U0 WeYUMaN
WIBARG U0 WBYUMBN
WIBASS U0 LIBYUMBN
LISARG U0 LIBYUMBN
UJIBASS U0 WBYUMBN
LLI9A9S U0 WBYUMBN
UJOARS U0 WEBYUMSN
UJOASS UO WBYUMBN
UIOADS U0 weyuman
UJ9ASS U0 WBYUMSN
WIBAS U0 WRYUMIN
UIBASS U0 WEBYUMaN
WIAAJS U0 WBYUMSN
WIBASS UO WBYUMIN
UIOASS UO WBYUMBN
UJOASS UO WEBYUMBN
UJOASS UO WBYUMSN
UJ9ASS U0 WRYUMSN
UJaASS UO WEHUMSN
UJAAJS U0 WEYUMSN
UIAA3G U0 WeYUMAN
puemaN

pugmaN

pugmaN

puemaN

ysued

317 uoijes0-] ASAINg Yoojg Be|g a41ysia}saono|o

51



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

25007

ujonp

95IN0D JOMOT
uoloNIISU0Y

gasn

(gJ06) gaunbiyg

JouueyD

JenbBueloey

ie|nbueloay
qefs

¢ adAL

uoloNIIsSuoD
Buidoo jlepn

aAnes0%8Q

aAles0%2Qq

uonp

8SIN0O JOMO7

Buidoo |1eAn

z9sn

Jejnbueloay
Jejnbuelosy

Jenbuelooy
Jejnfueloay
Jejnbueloay
JejnBueloay

JejnBueloay

ZadAL

usodaQ
ulonp
uoloONSU0D
9SIN09 JOMOT
UOHONIISUOD
uoiny

uomnp

984N0D JamoT
uiond
8SIN0D JAMO™
uoIoNIISU0D
9SIJN0Y JAMOT
Buidoo jjepn
98JN0Y JOMOT
uoHONAISU0D
9SIN0O JOMOT
uofoNJIISuoD
uonoNISU0D
Buidos jiepn
wonp

Buidoo jfepn
sulonp
uonoNJIISUCD
9SIN0D JOMOT

Lesn

JejnBuejoey
Jenfueyoay
Jenfuejoay
JeinBueoay
Jejnbueioay
Jejnbuejoay
Jejnbuejooy
JenBueoay
Jejnbueoay
Jenbueloay
JeinBuelosy
Jeinbueloay
Jenbueny
Jeinbuejoay
Jeinfuejoay
Jeinbuejosy
Je|nbueoay
Jeinbuejoay
JejnBuejoay
JenBuejoey
puno. jleH
JejnBueiosy
Jejnbuejosy
Jenbuelosy
} adAL

aueT sumIB)ISN|d
asnoH saoQ

peoy unod Ae|poy
unog abuel
sauolswNg

wied yosobuo
wied yosobuod
wie- yosobuol
wie yosobuo
asnoH yeopeosg
yeopeoig
Jeopeoud

puaxied

MeH 3yl

afieyon awnjg saouud
wie4 jeosis

uued jeoss

wied jeos)s

ule4 jeosis

9UET Jopued)

UOAY lIIN JO ise3
suaples youai4

liid 8uod

uleg

asnoH aaoQg

$9|gels

abeyod

Buipjing suoig
Buippnqino

uieg

ujeq suols

H001q aigelS

UeH SHUM ‘liem Asepunog
afenoo pleUNEQD 'paus
9SnoH ojep3 ‘|iem Asepunog
abepon sunwser

{lem pieAyoinyd

abenon younyd

llem Buipjinqino

ilem 1048

Buipiinqino pieAuued
useg

lem Aiepunog

ifem jooyos ybiH sHIS PIO
em Aend

abeyoo

166 S09.1S
0SLi S9PL OS
GGL1 08vL OS
G191 6/2LOS
0251 002L OS
0¥SL SPLLOS
0¥St SvLL OS
0¥SL G¥1L OS
o¥SL S¥LL OS

0cl 66908
821 869 0S
8¢) 8690S
€80 71808
9/Z ¢£¥80S
G8C 0¥8 0OS
G8C 6¢€8 OS
G8C LE8OS
8.6 P.G1S
8.6 ¥.S1S
8.6 P.LS1S
8.6 ¥.S1S
G¥c€ G268 OS
GL2e 5168 OS
€870 096. OS

uopes0T 2J0UBISYOY PUO

UOISBIOOAA
UI9A9S Uo Aingisapn
uIaAag Uo Aingisapn
WoASS uo Aingisep
UIaA9g uo AIngisapn
UIBA9S Uo Ainqisapn
waAss uo Aingisepn
WaA9g uo Aunqisepn
waAag uo Aingisepn
WI9A9S UO Aunqisapn
WIBA8S U0 AINGisapn
LIBA9S Uo Aungisapn
ueaq 1IS9M

KoL

Kepip

Kapty

Rapiiy

weyuasppil
weyusppi ]l
weyuapplL
weyuappii
Aingsexme ]
Kingsaxma |
asnoysuolg

ysued

3S17 uoijeso] AsAIng yooig Be|s a11ysiaysaono|s

52



Reprinted from the Gloucestershire Society for Industrial Archaeology Journal for 2003 pages 36 - 58

SURVEY OF 18th CENTURY SLAG BLOCKS

IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE \'Q '

_Z..J". ey a LAND CVER 125 M

8e, SINGLE AND MULTIPLE LOCATIONS

Q SITE OF LOMEERE REDBRODOK COPPER WORES

HAVIGABLE RIVERS AND EARLY CANALS

h HRRBOURS, FILLS, QUAYS AND LANDINGS

Figure 6, LOCATIONS OF IDENTIFIED BLOCKS NFS
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Figure 7. Use made of slag blocks at Corner House Farm, Corse
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SURVEY OF 18th CENTURY SLAG BLOCKS

IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE
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Figure 8. DISTRIBUTIONS OF PARTICULAR
BLOCKTYPES (EXCLUDING
TYPICAL RECTANGULAR ONES)
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Figure 9. Triangular copper slag blocks used as wall
copings at Nastend House, Nastend, Eastington,

Figure 0. Non-standard triangular copper
slag block with moulded initials,

(highlighted with chalk),
recovered from Ham and Stone.
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Figure 11.  Half-round copper slag blocks being reused at Lower Redbrook

e &

Figure 12.  Angle-ended, bay tvpe rectangular copper slag blocks
at Highbury Farm, Redbrook, Newland
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Figure 13 Copper slag channel block at Mill House,
Lower Framilode, Fretherne-with-Saul
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Figure 14. Depressed type rectangular slag block at
Lower Redbrook copperworks site
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